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ARCTIC EXPEDITION.

RETURN to an Order of the Honourable The gonse of Commons,
dated 6 April 1852 ;-for,

A COPY "of any further CoRREsPoNDENCE whichb bas been transmitted to the
Admiralty between Admiral Sir Johin Ross and the Danish Inspector-General,
touching the Fate of the Expedition under Sir Jokm Franklin."

(Captain Jones.)

A.dmiralty, J. H. HAY,
18 iMay 1852. J Chief Clerk.

Ordered, by The House of Cominnons, to be Printed, 21 a11ay 1852.

COPY of further Correspondence wv'hieh has been transnitted to the Admiralty
bet% een Admiral Sir John Ross and the Danish Inspector-General, touching
the Fate of the Expedition under Sir John Franklin.

-No. 1. -

My very dear and revered Sir, Copenhagen, is Jan. 1852.
Youa exceedingly, kind and friendly letter I received at my father's house,

Montebello,,on the 9th inst.
With deep regret I read that you have suffered from a severe illiess, but who

the dence can be well in such weather as we have lad these six weeks past?
As you were already so much better, I sincerely trust that you, with the blessing
of God, will be wholly recovered by this time, and I hope this will find you in
Lozdon hearty as usual.

You may depend upon it I lost no time in executing the first commission I
received from you-for me, always a command-and I pray to God it may not
be the last you give me. I immediately ordered horses, and in a few hours
fouiid myself domesticated in one of the hotels here. 'I have been very suc-
cessful indeed, having met with great cordiality from the membeis of the Royal
Danish Mission, with whom I immediately put myself in communication.

I have the satisfaction to informi you that in the course of a few weeks I shall
be enabled to send you several copies of every book ve possess in the Greenland
language, and likewise that I have entered into an agreement with Mr. Wandahl,
lector of the university in Greenlandish, and formerly minister in Greenland,
and trust to be able to send you the translation at the same time as the books.
Mr. Wandahl promises to do his best, and I an very happy to have secured
such a valuable assistance as his.

At Godhavn, where I arrived on the Saturday as you had left on Wednesday,
I saw and spoke to Adam Beck. He persisted in the truth of his assertion, and
I an myself of the opinion that Sir John Franklin 'must have been lost on bis
return. I am therefore most decidedly of your opinion that any attempt in
further exploring Wellington Channel will utterly fail in discovering anything
relating to the unfortunate expedition. With this expedition 1, like yourself,
womid have nothing to do; but are you sent out, and you really would give me
a conimand under you, say the word, and I am yoxurs, heart and hands, soul and
body. Proud, very proud indeed, will I be if allowed to follow such a leader,
even if that leader were not the hero of my youthful and mature fancy.

Mly seamanship, I trust, will stand its test in any part of the globe, and
believe me, my dear Sir, never had you a more devoted and attached follower
than I will be, if you allow me. My life bas, like your own, been one of
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adventures; I am therefore used to any climate, however warm or cold, and
having spent four years and a half in Greenland, I have of course acquired not
a little knowledge of the mauners of the natives, which I hope may not be
without its use on stich an expeditior I am still young and hearty, and eau
undergo a good deal of fatigue viithont complaining; and as to my courage, I
bear a name tlat iever yet during centuries was ever sallied. Poor dispenser of
words as I am, and necessarily also a poor letter writer, I could almnost be
eloquent when I think that I possibly might have been spared from severe
hardships and dangers to render my services on such an occasion; but I daresay
you are heartily tired of this already, and I will therefore break off at once.

I have seen Petersen (the interpreter to Penny), but do not put any great
confidence in hirn, for reasons I possibly some day may impart to you. le is
not the man I would recommend; there is none like a native.

(Some hours later.) 1 return this instant from a visit I paid the English
minister, who declares that he lias not received the deposition of Adam Beck, ou
which you say the setting out of the expedition will for a great part depend, and
that he never heard of its existence. I showed him your letter, and he told me
to write imnediately, and let you lknow that when the deposition did come, lie
would endeavour to get it translated, though lie did not know how; on which
I told his Excellency to forward it to Tue, when I would have it translated in
the shortest tirne possible. As to the contents of the deposition, they are well
known here in Denrnark. I have eeI a copy of it in the possession of Mr.
Möldrup at Godhavn, and it certainly went to say that the writer, Adam Beck,
on bis oath declared that he had seen and spoken some of the natives in
14elville Bay or thereabouts, who had told him that two ships were wrecked
there several years back; that the natives had provided their crews (some of
whorn wore uniforms) with the means of living for some time; but the bad
season coming on, liad discontinued to supply them, on which the Europeans
liad taken their provisions by force, and that eventually the natives had risen
and killed all the strangers. It is not at all any improbable or unlhkely story.

His Excellency having kindly offered to forward this along with his own
despatches, and the time allowed ine to vrite being nearly up, I am forced
to conclude with a heartfelt expressîou of gratitude for your last letter, so kind
and welcome; and assuring yoa once rniore that I an yours, soul and body, in
this or any other enterprise you rnight undertake.

Pray write me soon, and believe ie
Yours, &c.

Adiniral Sir John Ross, c. n., (signed) L. Platon.
&c. &c. &e.

Àlferno. of Rear-Admiral Houston Stewart, on the foregoing letter of Mr.
Platon's to Sir John Ross:-

£ee No. 2. " To be annexed to Sir John Ross's letter, requesting to have the command
of an expedition to explore the East Coast of Baffin's Bay.

-No. 2.-

Sir, 267, Strand, 17 January 1852.
I AM to request you will be pleased to infori my Lords Commissioners of the

Admiiralty, that in the event of their Lordships being desirous that the east
coast of Baflin's Bay, inorth of Uppernavick, and the inhabited part of the west
coast, should be examined to deternioe the fate of the missing ships, I ara a
volunteer to perform that important service, which from the fact of my being the
only naval officer who understands the Danish language, I am undoubtedly the
best qualified to perform, as the Esquirnaux of Greenland understand no other
language but the Danish and their own.

I arm to request that you will also inform their Lordships my belief of the
ships under Sir John Franklin being lost in Baflin's Bay, is strengthened by
the fact, that Adami Beck, the interpreter, lias deposed that the words " 3rd of
September, 1846," were on the tin plate which was lost, as appears by the

translation



EXPEDITION UNDER SIR JOHN FRANKLIN.

translation arrived from Germany, and which is believed to be true by the
Danish authorities.

I request also you will be pleased to informtheir Lordships, that Mr. Lewis
Platon, an intelligent Danish gentleman, who had been sent to Greenland to
audit and inspect accounts, bas volunteered to accompany me, and that we are
both of opinion, and confident that we should be able to put an end to the
question, which will not be the case by the plan recommended by the Arctic
Conmittee.

In order to perform this service, I should require two small vessels (the
"Lady Franklin" and l Sophia ") and a small steamer. I should have no
occasion to sail before the end of May, and [ would return about the ist of
November in this year.

Lastly, I beg you will inform their Lordships, that on purpose to perform
this service, I shall most willingly hoist my pendant as a captain, instead of
hoisting my flag as a rear-admiral.

Captain W. A. B. Hamilton, R. N.,
&C. &c. &c.

I am, &c.
(signed) John Ross,

Rear-Admiral.

- No. 3. -
Sir, Admiralty, 22 January 1852.

H AVINO laid before my Lords Commissioners of the Admiralty your letter of
the 17th instant, placing your services at the disposal of my Lords in the event
of a further expedition being fitted out for the Arctic seas, I am to convey to
you their Lordships' thanks for the offer you have made them, but at the same
time to acquaint you that they are not prepared to avail themselves of your
proposal.

Rear-Admiral Sir John Ross, C. B.
I have, &c.

(signed) J. Parker.

- No. 4.-
North West Castle, Stranraer,

Sir 17 February 1852.
I HAvE the honour to send you herewith a letter, with which I have been See Enclosure to

favoured by Mr. Lewis Platon, the intelligent Danish gentleman whose acquaint- No. 4.
ance I made at Holsteinborg, in Greenland (touching the probable fate of the
missing expedition, under the command of Sir John Franklin), and which I
iequest you will be pleased to lay before the Lords Commissioners of the
Admiralty, for their Lordships further information on that important subject.

I beg to add, it is my firm belief, that the interpreter, Adam Beck, has sworn
to the trath as stated in rmy former communication, and in the letter from Sec No. 2, p. 2.
Mr. Platon, forwarded through Admiral Houston Stewart to their Lordships. Sec No. 1, p.id

Although I do not put the slightest credit in the report of Mr. Penny, touch-
ing the Wellington Channel, I have no desire that it should not be more fully
examined, while it is evident; that if my proposal for an investigation of the
truth of Adam's Beck's assertion is successful in deciding the fate of the .missing
ships, it would lead to the early recall of the searching expeditions both toithe
Westward and eastward, and thereby save a considerable expense to Governmento
and probably rnany valuable lives, as such an expedition as I have proposed in
my letter of the 17th ultimo, need not leave England before the ist of June, See No. 2, p. 2.
and would return at the latest by the 1st of November, and as the vessels i
recommended are nearly ready, the additional expense would be trifling.

Their Lordships knowing the deep interest the gallant Franklin took in niy
rescue under similar circumstances, and the sacred promise I made to him, on
his departure, will I am confident pardon my zeal in bis cause, even if the steps
I have taken do not meet with their Lordships' high approbation.

I have, &c.
(sigted) John Ros,

Captain W. A. B. Harnilton, à. N., Rear-Admiral.
Secretary àf the Adrmiralty,

&c. &c.,&c.
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Enclosure to No. 4.

My dearly revered Sir, Copenlagen, 6 February 1852.
FRo-x your very welcomie letter, dated 29th ult., which I received to-day, i find that the

Adniralty lias not yet been pleased to appoint you to the comrirand of one of the now
fitting Aretic expeditions, likely from not having received the deposition of Adam Beck,
which their Lordships probably eventually may thnk fit to disbelieve.

My candid opinion is, that Government will seek Sir John Franklin everywhere but
where he is nost likely to be found, and I certainly must say that it is most surprising to
me and everybody here in Denmark, that the Government having already expended a heavy
sum in their different attempts to ascertain the fate of Sir John Franklin, should now draw
back, wlen there is the best reason to suppose that a new effort, made in a proper direc-
tion, would lift the veil that is thrown over the fate of Sir John Franklin and hig gallant
crews.

It is a niatter of course that there is many opinions abroad as to the direction Sir John
lias taken, after leaving Beeclicy Island. I have in thepapers read several very good argu-
ments in support of his having pushed on and proceeded through Wellington Channel.
Alloving that to be the case, let an expedition be sent out in that direction, most certainly;
I will cycn say, such an effort ought to be made; but there is inot one arguaient to be
found or deduced from ail the late reports, that cari induce anybody to deny the possibility
of his intended return, even ifh-is preserved provisions have remained good, which you know
is at least doubted.

Several circumstances seem to prove that lie is lost on his return ta England froma Beechey
I sland, or perhaps a place somewhat farther up the channel, and this I think will be proved,
firstlv, by the fact, otherwise unaccountable, that nothing whatever is heard of hin after
leavinîg lis winter quarters, which undoubtedly vould have been the case if Le had by slow
degrees proceeded onwards, whereas his returning would leave io trace ; secondly, by the
fact observed by myseif and others, that the ice in the years 184% 1847, and 1s48, was
unconmonly heavy in the Greenland seas, and not unlikely prevented his further progress;
and, lastly, certainly not the least conclusive evidence, by the depositions (for lhe las made
two, as I shall prove) of Adam Beck.

You say that the authorities do not place any great confidence in. bis assertion; let me
say, they know nothing at all about the Greenlanders, or else they would not for a moment
doubt the statement of a Greenlander, vhen made on his oath. The Greenlanders are not
yet civilized enough to commit perjury. I will allow that the natives, and especially Adain
IBeck, would not in the least scruple to tell a falsehood on his bare vvord, but once put upon
his oath, he would bite the tongue out of his mouth before lie uttered a syllable he did not
hiniself believe to be the truth.

Adana Beck has made two statements, both of which I have seen ; the one transnitted to
Mr. Grundrig is made in more general terns; the other which, as I in my last letter
observed, is in the hands of Mr. Möildrup, who, like myself, did not for a moment doubt
that Adam Beck at least believed himself that Le had uttered nothing but the nere truth. I
saw Adam Beck at Godhavn, and as you well remember, that 1 procured him for you at
lolsteinsborg; [ had thus' a double interest in his speaking the truthi; I exanined liim
several times and very severely, but even if 1 had not some lingering doubts as to his
veracity, his straightforward answers to rny questions would have convinced nie that lie has
asserted nothing but the truth, but not aIl the truth, as he hinself retmarked to nie, in very
bad English, of which language lie seemed very fond: " I Lad sworn to God, and on his
book, that I would say nothing but what I was sure of, and that I said, but I could not so
positively remember many things I heard from the natives, that I could swear to them,
although I am perfectly sure of it myself; I cannot swear that the words I shouild use were
the saine as those I heard, and therefore I said nothing."

I thought that quite conclusive evidence enough (besides the idea of a, Greenlander
inventing such a story is really too ridiculous), and I will therefore mnaintain that Adam Beck
lias throvn a light on the probable fate of the missing expeditionî, which, in my eyes, it
would be unpardonable not farther to investigate. fhat, next to being with you, is ny
reason for wishing to join you in this expedition, which I have little or no doubt would at
once solve the question. These, my remarks, I give you leave to use in aiy manner you
may think fit. The books, and especially the translation, I must acknowlede have cost
me~great pains in proeuring for you. The books were, without exception, in te hands of
several royal and private institutions, and therefore not easy to procure. I have however
surmounted every obstacle, and have now the last copies at the' birider. I have collected
three copies of ail the works (about 25 in number) published; will you have thern ail three,
or can I keep one copy for myself ? If you wish it, I'will certairily send you ail three
copies. From the secretary of the Rönal mission, Mr. Rung, I have met great.kindness,
and it is partly owing to his exertions that I have been able to procure acollection as coin-
plete as is found in any publie library. You would do -me a favour if you would enclose me
a few words of acknowledgment to this gentleman. The translation lias caused me a great
deal of grief. Mr. Wandahl, who you know Lad promised to execute it, sent me it back
with word that lie did not find himself com etent to translate the words, as they were
spoken, with a due reference to gramnar, and recommended the Rev. Mr. NMsted as the
only mian in Dennark who was able to execute such a work. I found out Mr. liösted,
'who very readily undertook the task, which I think lie has executed extremely well.

I received my notes (you know I had to translate it fromi English to Danish) fron himw
some tine igo; when I had put the whole in order, I delivered it to be copied, but, ood

God !
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God ! how it was rendered. I have tried< two other places since with equal success, and
mnst now attempt what I can do myself. As soon as I am done with it, and Mr. Nâsted
lias revised it, I shall send it you per post. Mr. Nösted refused to accept of any remune-
ration I offered him, but only insisted on keeping the book, which interested him greatly.
Pray inclose me a few lines for, him, as he would feel very proud in accepting a few words
fromyou.

I am offered an appointient, but have declined accepting it, as I still hope ta hear more
favourable tidings froru you, and trust and hope that I may have the pleasure in a few weeks
to be able personally ta assure you that I an&

Yours, &c.
(signed) L. Platon.

Admirai SirJohn Ross, c.a.,
&c. &c. &c.

-No. 5.-

Sir, Adrniralty, 6 March 1852.
I A commanded by my Lords Conirnissioners of the Adiniralty, to transmit

toyou lerewith, foryour consideration and report, the enclosed copy of a letter* Enclosure toNo 5.
from Adam Beck, relative to the missing expedition under Sir John Franklin.

I am, &c.
Rear-Admiral, Sir John Ross, c.B. (signed) W. 4. B. Hanilton.

&c. &C. &C.

Enclosure to No. 5.

IHolsteinsborg, 3 July 1860.
AT my departure, everything, went well for the firat two days; nothing disagreeable

happened to me; but on the third day my first misfortune happened. Three men took me
and threw, me overboard; they cast me into the water, and my head went round. .[I became
lglit headed.] At that time I could not speak English; and it was,,therefore, these three
men treated me in this manner, either to nake, gaie of me,, or with serious désigus on my
life. These people who thus threw me into the water, and were three, were called,,the first,
Alexander Tudar; the second, Alexander Murray; and the third, James, Presier; these are
the chief of thein. But my ship's captain knew nothing of my being treated-in thià manner.
His name was Sir John Ross. This Ross had a great regard for me, and I was not less
attached ta him. As we advanced we observed no natives among the ice nasses, butoas we
went on still farther, there came ships towards us with large crews; tbey; approached'very
near, and told us ta keep outside the great ice. When ive hiad passed the heaviest ice
masses, towardà evening of the next day, steering along the outer edge of'the ]and, .we.got,
sightof three natives, who came towards us. Our chief told me to mieet them as soon as
ve came nearer the land-ice (with the ship), the distance in depth.of half:a [Dhnish] mile.
At this distanceswe met' people, and whei we came to thein, Captain Plhilip,,one of our
ship chiefs, told me to speak ta them in My own language, but I answered him,, "Wait
a little, till we come hnearer to them." I nowwalked'over the ice, and said to them, "How
are you,? Answer me!" One of them shouted to the others as loud as he could, "They
have a native with them !" lis comrades repeated, lThe.y have a native with them; he
talks as ve doý; yes, it, is an inuuk.; let hii corne ta me, for he spoke first to me." But
I answered, ixthem, continuing to ask whetber they bad seen any ships. They replied;, " Nb,
we have seei inone." But I answered, and continued, " But saw you none last autumn ?"
They replied, e Yesterday we saw two'-slips,!' -then asked them, I Where are the ships
which you saw ?'" Batthe natives answered, " To the east and south of us we met some
which lad a native on board, but ,sorne of bis. words we did, not understand.". I knew
by this directly thatit was, Carl'Petersen; andI said tn them again,," Have you.seen no
other ships ??' " Yes, one ship have we seeni which was at Omenak." And I said; " Have
you not, seen others ?" "lNo, wehave seen no others but the chiefof'one ofthe strongly-
nanned ships gave his natives their pictures (or pictures of European women)?' But one
of them whispered to bis comrade, and said, I Well, let us kill them directly, for their wonen
are, doubtless, like them." But.I straight asked themi, "Who is it you would kill?" They
answered only, and said, "The Europe people are not worth fearing!, Certaifily not,'we
shall not fear thein; they and we are equally to be feared. By Omenak (not far from
Omenak) we have seen two ships, which were set on fire last fail by the natives." But
I asked, " Wlere have these natives gone to ?" They answered me, " The shiip has ver-

tainff~

This'dobument sbould have beèn designated a copy ofa t-anslation of' the, deppsion made by
Adanm Beck.

390. A 3



FURTHER CORRESPONDENCE RESPECTING THE

tainly had them as father (=carried them on board)." And I inquired, " Whither ? " And
they replied, "They went down!" And I asked them again, " Down where?" And they
answered, " They went to the sea-bottom !" The next day, on our departure, we saw two
ships to the east of us. They came to us, but I did not know them; but they called them
Lide (?) Franklin, Esquire. With a strong-manned (=ship, vessel, sloop), we went towards
them, and got alongside them on the left hand, at some distance. While we kept still
they came over to us in a ship's boat; I directly knew the man again whom I saw yesterday,
whose name was Kallasèk (=Navle*), in company with Carl Petersen. He came near us,
after he had climbed up the edge of the ship, and said, "'Adam, you are a liar !" As he
addressed me in this way I did not answer him. This Kallasèk asked me directly [? I asked
this Kallasèk directlyl, "Where are these ships, then? Have you destroyed thein (perhaps
=lost sight of them)?" They answered me, "We don't know !" Petersen knows the
language of the Europeans; yet this same Petersen would not talk of their manners (way
of acting.) I now turned straight to him, and ordered him to tell me directly what ships
these were, as I did not know whether they were whale-ships, or whether they were the
royal discovery ships. He answered me deceitfully, " Don't speak in that way. If we two
are away several months yet, our earned money will be mucli more." I answered him, " It
is the same to me whether I earn money or not. This seems to me to be enough, as long
as my father lives. If you see him alive, I shall be glad, but do not tell him that I am
gone away, and travel continually onward. He lives always in my memory, as au old
man wlhen I left him."

To this I vill add: This native, Kallasèk, said to me, that these ships had four swords;
that one of them should be taken with the sword ; its name was Kàrcok, and it had three
united swords. For this cause I, Adam, have spoken the truth, and shall not grow weary
of speaking the truth ; if hereafter I am ordered to Omenak, I can go too.

God be thanked, that Sir John Franklin is come!
When we in the autumn made a journey, we came to (the place) Pitsé (Fabricius'

Ordbog [Dictionary], p. 380 ; north of Pitserfik (= the place where any one bas died), got
ashore, and saw the first place- he (Franklin) had landed at, That is, we saw bis three
(buried) dead, vho hud died in the autumn of 1846. There we remained four days, and
there I got one of the ship's company as my enemy. This was Murray. There, on the
morning of the fourth day, while I was running away, and three of the ship's crew were
after me (to the bills) without thieir getting up to me, and who, therefore, turned back again,
while 1 continued to fly, I got eyes on a cross-tree. I went to this timber-cross, and saw
tliat a brass-plate was hammered (inlaid) in it, with a long inscription in the English
tongue. But I did L.ot understand it, as it is not my speech. I only knew [could readj
thus much: September 3d 1846. I thankfully drew it out directly from the side [of the
post],t and intended to take it home with me. On my way over the hills I slid over the
snow, for the snow, like an ice-hill, had first been thawed, and then had frozen again. This
brass-plate, which I had found, I lost again, and could not go back [to look for it], as I had
no weapon (ice-hook) with me, and could not walk up the ice-bill.

Only the wood did I bring back with me, and lost what was written upon it. The
wooden post alone was brouglit home, to use for fire-wood in the summer. This wood.
which I found I have marked with my name, because I will keep it.

In my winter abode I have been very unlucky, for my wicked shipmates spoke ill of
me to my master. They forged a lie against me, although they were the guilty persons.
They opened a cask of brandy with a gimilet, and now and then they stole some of it.
The people who did'this laid the blame on me, and I was therefore dangerously situated,
althougli I was altogether innocent. In the meantime I an glad of this lying accusation'
against me, inasmuch as we shall all be placed before Gojd after death.

I hope that Heaven will preserve my friend, the dear Ross, in the coming time. Now
I p art fron you; I give you my hand, and bid you farewell. Hereafter shall we see each
other no more to our life's end; may we meet in the joy of Heaven!

Farewell ! 1, thy very dear,
Godhavn, 30 August 1851. Adam Beck.,

The undersigned bas translated literally the Greenland document, so as to express the
natural phraseology of the Eskimoes as correctly as possible. As far as I can judge by
the hand, the style, and the construction of this document, it has been written by the
schoolmaster, Paul Erik Rasmussen, of the Godhavn station.

(signed) Nösted,
Seminary Warden and Missionary

Copenhagen, 6 February 1802. at Jacobshavn.

Th',

Anglice, Navel.
t What follows shows the meaning to be :-i directly drew it (the post, brass-plate, and all) front

the side (of the hill); for lie has the post safe.
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The contradictions and obscurities in the above strange opus are fnot rny fault. I have
translated it as literally and correctly as I could from the D amsh, without regard to elegance
of expression. To nake sense of it is another thing. I have added the explanatory words
within brackets [ ]; those within parentheses ( ) are in the original Danish.

(signed) George Stephens,
Professor of English Literature in the

Copenhagen, 10 February 1852. University of Copenhagen.

- No. 6.-

Sir, North West Castle, Stranraer,do March 1852.
I Am to acknowledge the receipt of your letter, dated the 6th instant, and the

therein enclosed copy of the translation of a letter written by Adam Beek, the
Esquinaux interpreter ofthe "Felix," being the deposition sworn to by him in"my
presence at Godhavn, in the island of Disco, Greenland, and requiring my con-
sideration, and my report on the same as relative to the missing expedition under
Sir John Frauklin.

And I have to acquaint you, for the information of the Lords Commissioners
of the Admiralty, that I have carefully considered the said translation made by
Professor Nösted, and am decidedly of opinion that it confirms the statement

often made to myself by Adam Beck, during the voyage, when I put questions
to him in the Danish language on the subject, namely, that the two missing
ships were lost on the east coast of Baffin's Bay, in the autumn of 1846. iad
bís deposition been more coherent, I should not have placed so much reliance
on it as I now do; because then it would not have been his own composition.
Referring also to Mr. Platon's letters before tranismitted to you for the informa-
tion of their Lordships, it will be seen that Adam Beck had subsequently made a
more satisfactory deposition, and had been strictly questioned by that gentle-
man, who then held a responsible situation under the Danish Government at
Greenland, and who is decidedly of opinion that Adam Beck has spoken and
sworn to the truth, and the evidence lie has given touching the fate of the missing
ships ought not to be rejected in consequence of its incoherency and its contra-
diction by the Dane, Petereen, who did so for obvious reasons.

Having seen in the weekly paper " Nautical Standard," that Mr. Penny had
published his letter to the Admiralty, in which I am called on to explain " Why
I believed Adam Beck's assertion,?" I obtained his pamphlet, and in the same
paper, I have published the enclosed reply, to which I beg to refer, and which See Enclosure to
vill account in a satisfactory manner for the disbelief (in the first instance) No. 6.

of Adam Beck's story, and the observations made by the Arctic Committee, ·and
evidence touching the document written on board the " Assistance," which arose
fron his being taken there against lis will, to write down what the Esquimaux
boy said (who had been tutored by Petersen to say nothing about the lost ships),
but not what le himself had heard, and of course (fron Petersen's contradiction)
Captains Austin and Ommaney believed that Adam Beck had been telling a
faisehood, because otherwise it would have been their duty te have made a search
in that locality.

It will -be impossible that the expedition now fitting out can examine the east
coast of Baffin's Bay, and the Wellington Channel also, during this season,
besides which a knowledge of the Danish language is a qualification absolutely
necessary, as the Esquimaux of Danish Greenland understand only the Danish
and their own language, and in fact, I was the only person in the seven ships
who could obtain the information from Adam Beck touching the fate of the
ships.

And referring to my plan for effectually examining the said locality, as the See No. 2, p. 2.
only chance of setting the question at rest,

Captain W. A. B. Hamilton, R.N.
Secretary of the Admiralty,

&c. &c. &c.

I have,
(signed)

&c.
John .o8s,

Rear-Admiral.

Enclosure390-.
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Enclosure to No. 6.

Sir, To tie Editor of the Nautical Standard.

It is with no less concern than reluctance that I feel myself under the necessity of
nîoticing the vain, silly, and supercilious attempt which Captain Penny has made in justifica-
tion of bis extraordinary conduct while in charg e of a Government Expedition in searcli of
the missng ships, by an ill-advised letter to the late Admiralty, which he has published.
For being employed on the sanie interesting service, and our vessels being frozen up within
200 yards of each other, and rendering each other every assistance in our power for 11
months, I have to acknowledge many marks of his kindness, in bountifully sharing with us
sone of those luxuries supplied to him by Government, which my limited means did not
enable me to procure; a circumstance which was, without doubt, conducive to the conifort,
if not to the health wè enjoyed, during the severity of an Arctic winter.

I shall not, however, notice the many rnisrepresentations witli which his almost unintelligible
stntements arc replete, leaving Captain Austin either to refute them, or to treat them with
their merited contempt. But I am called upon by Captain Penny to explain why I
continue to believe the assertion of Adam Beck, and in doing so, I have to regret that I
must make an exposure which cannot be agreeable ta him, and which, but for his temerity
in demanding it, woild have becn buried in oblivion. As, however, this circumstance is
closely connected witli the fate of the gallant Franklin, all personal considerations must
give way to truth and justice. 1

Captain Penny left England early in the month of April, when (taking into consideratiori
the severity of the previous winter) he must have been well aware that lie could make no
progress to the northward in Baffin's Bay, but his double pay of a Post Captain of the
Royal Navy, ta 'vhich he had been fortuitously clevated, began earlier, and lie lad an object

in visiting Uppernavik, to procure frnm this northernmost of the Danish settlenients, the
services of his friend, Mr. Petersen, vhom le induced ta leave his situation of 20 i. a year
(with which he Vas dissatisfied), for the position of interpreter with lim, at 75 i. a year, and
without the Danish Governor's permission. In the month of August,tlhe " Felix" overtook
the whole Of the Government slips, when about tue 12th of that month the aboriginal
Esquimaux were seen on the margin of the land ice, and had on the preceding day been co -.
nunicated vith by Captain Penny, and wlose note delivered by then to the officers of the
" Intrepid " and " Felix," for Captain Austin, proved that no inquiries had been made respect-
ing the fate of thc missing ships. Adam Beck, the interpreter of the 'e Felix," liaving obtainied
information frorm the stranger EFquimaux, which le could not fiuly communicate (the "Felix"
being then at a distance), Captaîn Penny's interpreter was sent for, and flatly contradicted
the statenient of Adam Beck, calling hlim " a liar," which being ironically repeated by the
poor fellow, vho wns frightened (and no wonder, as it is well known that these Danish
overseers are often seveie on the poor natives of Greenland). In the meantime a young
Esquimaux vas brought on boatd the "Assistance,",and being tutored by Petersen, also
denied the truth of Adam Beck's story, and every one, as well as myself, believed it was a
fabrication, although no one could conjecture why lie sbould, in a moment, have conjured
up such a story; and Petersen's motive did not, at that time, become apparent. We all
proceeded on our voyage, arrangements having been made that Captain Penny, according
to his instructions, was to visit and examine Jones's Sound (which indeed vas the origin of
hiis being employed), and the others ta examine the positions within Barrow's Strait; but
Captain Penny did not wait near Jones's Sound for its opening, which could not be ex-
pected for sanie days, but proceeded up Lancaster Sound, where he spoke the " North Star,"
and by her bis despatches were sent home, among alhers, a letter from Mr. Petersen to his
wife at Upernavik, whicl will be noticed hereafter. We subsequently communicated with
eacli otlier at Union Bay, Beechîey Island, where Captaii Penny, unjustly to Captain
Phillips and Mr. Abernethy, appropriated to himself the credit of discovering the graves of
the deceased men that hiad belonged to the " Erebus" and "Terror." Having remained in the
Wellington Channel two days longer than any other vessel, the " Felix," owing to a disruption
of a part of the edge of the barriee wbich crossed, we were enabled distinctly to see land to
the north of this barrier, which i narned " North Victoria," but which was subsequently
claimed by Captain Penny as his discovery, and naned "Albert Land." After passing
Wellington Channel, and uscertaining that the passage between Griffiths' and Cornwallis'
Islands was closed by ice for the season, we were returning to Wellington Channel with the
intention of obtaining a position as far north in it as I could, when we unfortunately fell in
with Captan Penny, who informed us that Captain Austin's squadron were proceeding to
a bay discovered un Cornwallis Island, to wbich we accompanied the " Lady Franklin" and
"Sophia," expecting that, as nothing more could be done that season, I should be requested
to return to England withl despatches. On the following day, we were finally frozen mand
Ca ptain Austin's squadron did not reach our harbour.

1uring the whole wnter, Adam Beck continued ta assert the truth of his statement
respectong the fate of Sir John Franklin, and as he begah to understand English,
explanations and information werc elicited from him that convinced almost all on board the
"'Felix," that lie had told the truth. Before leaving our position at Cornwallis Island, I had
several conversations in the Dansli language, which lie understands, which convinced me
that there was at least so miîuch probabilhty in his report, as demanded that a search in that
locality should be made for the wreck of the missing ships.

It was therefore my determaination to endeavour, even with the slender means and small
quantity
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quintity of provisions I possessed, to make the search, whicli seened to give much delight
to Adam Beck, who exclaimed, "Now you see I niot tell a lié!" I communicated to
Captain Penny that I intended going round the north side of the main ice, and land Adam
Beck at Disco, where I hoped to find the provisions directed to be landed there by the
" North Star,",and he communicated to me (in presence ofseveral persons) that he believed the,
mlissing ships had been wrecked on the west coast of Batlin's Bay; and, as he lad an inter-
preter, lie would examine the whole coast between Lancaster Soind and Cumberland Strait,
a disitance of 600 miles, and, knowing, in that case, le could not reach England before
November, I sent no despatches by him. We proceeded to carry our intentions into
execition, but found that the land ice, from the latitude of 770 to 74°, extended 30 miles
from the east coast, and as we were unprepared to winter, having only three inonths' provi-
sions left, we har no alternative but to proceed to Godhavn, im Disco Island, where we
hoped to obtain a supply that would enable us to return to the northward. On approaching
Disco (which we found quite clear of ice) we fell in with the Danish Government store-ship

IlIyalfisken," Captain Elumble, who kindly piloted us into Godhavn. On our arrival I
discharged Adam Beck, and in conversation with Captan Humble, I obtained the following
astounding information, Captain lumble said:-" I have just corne fron Uppernavik, and
have seen Mr. Petersen's wife, who lad received a letter from her husband, dated July,
Lancaster Sound (which I read), sayng that it was now certain that they vould comfortably
spend the winter in some snug harbour, and as lie would be carried to England and spend
another winter there, lie vould have plenty of money from the English Government, and
that lie would conie out witlh Captain Penny, who would have the command of another
expedition, and come home to Copenhagen, desiring lier to sell her furniture, &c. Another
came to the wife's sister, who is married to the mate of one of the Government ships-
hoping that Petersen would be carried to England, as, in that case, lie would return with
suhicient money to enable him to quit this wretched country." Thus it appears that Captain
Penny's plans, which it is evident hie attempted to put into execution, by naking the best of
his way home, had been organized as eaily as the 23d July 1850, but as he could not have
left England with the addition of a steamer before the lst October 1851, it was impossible
he could have reached the Wellington Channel that season. His object must have been,
therefore, to have conifortably wintered at Ball's River, or Holsteinsborg, or some port
in Greenland, on full pay (800. a year), and proceed in June 1852, and'would have been
just as far forward as though he had left England at that time. His plans were, however,
happily frustrated by the absence of the First Lord of the Admiralty, and the decision of the
Arctic Committee.

lin the meantime, Adam Beck voluntarily appeared before the resident at Godhavn, and
deposed as to the truth of bis former statement, subsequent to which he was examined
by Inspecto-general Lewis Platon, who lias written to me that he is fully convinced that
Adam Beck lias spoken the truth.

The' following is an extract of the third letter on the subject which I have received
fromi Mr. Platon :

'' Montebello, Feb. 17, 1852.
"From the interest I take in the question where Sir John Franklin ought to be sought,

and being, as you know, most decidedly of opinion that Sir John Franklin was lost on bis
intended return, I feel myself bound to say a fev words on this subject, which you will use
as you think proper.

"I shall merely premise what you are already aware of, that I have, during four years and
a half, lield a responsible governiment situation in Greenland. Three years of this tinie
T resided at Holsteinsborg, and had thus ample opportunity of observing the character of the
natives generally, and of Adam I3eck individually, as lie during that time aever omitted an
opportunity of thrusting himself into my notice, and le several times, temporarily, was
attached to my household. I think therefore I may, without presumption, claim to be con-
sidered as not incompetent to judge of wliat confidence there ouglit to be placed in what may
be deduced from such a document as bis. From my knowledge of the character of Adam
Beek, I may safely assert that it is beyond doubt that lie bas heard something about the .two
lost ships; but certainly it would be difficult to say what it is lie lias heai d, merely by reading
his deposition. As I informied you in a former letter, I have seen this man after his discharge
at Godliavn; I therefore look on the deposition in a far different manner than others un-
acquainted with these facts undoubtedly would do; and I maintain that it throws a light on
the fate of' Sir John and his gallant crew, and that it would be shameful altogether to reject
his evidence. I cannot but regret that you did not get a copy of the other deposition lie
made, as it was far more satisfactory than the one you got. I nust make haste to be in
time for post that leaves here at two o'clock, and must therefore conclude, angry with
nyself for not being able to write such as to convince any but myself that the greater
reliance imy be placed on his assertion. Pray write nie as soon as possible, and believe
nie, &c., &c.

(signed) "L. Platon."
Mr. Platon's former letters, with my own, have been sent to the late Admiralty. In one

of them he says, " The people of Denmark think it strange that the English Government are
sending to search for Franklin in every place but where he is to be found."

Captain Penny must no longer assert that I am the only person who gives any credit -to
Adam .Beck's assertion ; but in return I must be -permitted to say, that I yield not the
smallest credit to the assertion of-Captain Penny, that Sir John -Franklin ever went up the

390. B Wellingtoa
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Wellington Channel. I was present at the interview lie had vith C iptain Austin on board
the " Resolute," on the 1ith of August, wen I cari testify tliat Captain Penny made no
application at that tinie for a steami-vessel ; nioreover, I cati testify tliat the application for a
steam-vessel would have been absurd, as it was quite impossible she couild have proceeded
up that channel. The " Felix " was the last vessel that left that spot on the 13th of August,
at which time the barrier of ice was still across it; on thatday, no water could be seen from
Cape Spencer to the northward, and then Captain Penny's vessels were both to the eastward
of Cape Riley. Captain Penny asserts that Captain Austin took the," Felix " in tow to
take lier home, that she might take the credit of his discoveries ; but the truth is, that
Captain Austin offered to tow Captain Penny's vessels out of Lancaster Sound, which offer
lie did not accept; and it was then that lie offered to take us as far as Union Bay, Beechey
Island, where Captain Penny must have seen the "Felix " as he passed.

I have now only one more subject to disabuse. Captain Penny's whole idea that Sir John
Franklin went up the Wellington Channel, ivas based on the fact of his having found upon
the ice two chips of wood, which I verily believe must have been thrown on the ice by some
of his own crew, for othcrwise they wouild have been found sunk considerably below the sur-
face, and they were such pieces of wood as were numerous where the ships wintered. But
if Captain Penny really believed that the missing ships had gone up what lie now calls the
Victoria Channel (not narked as such in the chart lie gave to nie), why did lie not remain
hinself to explore it in the spring ?-He ventured to say that lie had not enough of pro-
visions, because he liad given sorne to the 'Felix "; but this he denied on the Committee,
as two cwt. of carrots and a bag of potatoes were all we got, and for which we would have
supplied him with ten tons of coals, and six casks of flour; but Captain Austin would cer-
tainly have supplied liri up to three years; besides the depôt at Leopold Island was within
60 niles of where his vessel would be. When I said in mny evidence that Captains Austin
and Penny vere both justified in commg home, it was with the conviction that they both
thought and believed that the locality was completely searched, and that they both believed
(as i do) that the missing ships never went up that Channel. I have no doubt that they lost
both seasons of 1845 and 1846, and that finding they liad only provisions for another year
(and perhaps less, as niany of Goldnier's canisters were found with only one cut at the top,
whiclh being convex were clear proofs of their putrescent condition), that they were lost on
the passage home. Captain Peniny's assertion (page 10), that the loss of two ships with the
wliole crews is inext to impossible, and contrary to all experiençe; this, observation cannot
apply to ships wvrecked in Baffin's Bay ; after the month of September there is no experience
of any ships bemng lost in Baffin's Bay, but in the suniner.

In conclusion, I deeply regreiithat Captain Penny lias been so imprudent as to publish
what lie lias done ; I believed that he really had been actuated by feelings of philanthropy,
touching the rescue of my gallant friend Franklin and his brave companions; he had at one
time ganed my esteem and regard, and lie knows that I acted as a peacemaker between him
and those wloin his virulent tenper had offended. I w'as an admirer of his zeal and unq
flinching perseverance, and I thien believed that lie had no sinister motive; it has been
therefore with iixed feelings of sorrow and of pity that I have been constrained to chare
my opinion of an individual who has proved that lie ougbt not to have been elevated to 
position in which lie was unfortunately placed. s

(signed) John Roiss, Rear-Admirah.

-No. 7.-

Sir, Admiralty, 13 Marci 1852.
I HAVE received and laid before ny Lords Commissioners of the Admiralty

your letter of the lth instant, with its enclosure, on the subject of Adam Beck's
deposition relative to the missing ships under the orders of Captain Sir Johb
Franklin.

I am, &c.
Rear Admiral, Sir John Ross, c. B. (signed) Augustus Staford.

-No. S.

Sir, 267, Strand, London, 23 March 1852.
See Enclosure to ENCLOSED you will receive the extract of a letter I have this day received
No. 8. , from Inspector-general Lewis Platon, touchig the fate of Sir John Franklin's

expedition, which 1 am to request that you will be pleased to lay before the
Lords Conmissioners of the A dmiralty for their Lordships' serious consideration,

and
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and to inforn their Lordships that I entirely agree with the Danish Inspector-
geieral that there is no chance of deciding the question of the missing ships
but by the examination I have recommended.

I have, &c.
(signed) John Ross,

To Captain W. A. B. Hamilton, R.N., Rear-Admiral.
&c. &c. &c.

Enclosure to No. 8.

EXTaACT of a Letter fromn the Danish Inspector-Genei al of Greenland touching the Fate
of Sir John Franklin's Expedition.

Montebello, Denmark,
My dear Sir, à Marci 1852.

Youns of the 26th ult. I had the pleasure of receiving this day.
I am really both surprised and vexed that nothing yet has been decided on. The season

is already far advanced, and it is time Goverrnment should decide whether they will indeed
search after Sir John Franklin ia earnest, or if they intend to rest satisfied with sending the
expedition ander Sir Edward Belcher in a direction where others have failed in tracing the
unfortunate voyagers farther than Beechey Island, and where the chances are a thousand to
one that the expedition will return as wise as they leave. I really do hope the Government
will pay less attention to the representations of others, and listen somewhat more to the voice
of reason. The people of England are strangely infatuated as regards this question.

The more I think, and the more I put this and that together, the more convinced I ana
that Sir John Franklin never committed such an actof madness as to push his way farther
on, after leasEing Beechey Island, having most likely at the time scarcely provisions enough
left for the space of time it had taken him to reach this place. Don't tell me about his pro-
curing, and ývith ease too, such a lot of provisions as the officers of the different expedition
ships seem to lay such weight upon. I know the country too well for that; but even sup-
pose they could get an inexhaustible supply of birds, had he salt enongh to cure such a
number? Stili an Englishman is noEsquimaux, and no one but un Esquimaux or a Russian
can live and do his duty on board any length of time on such a diet, in such a climate. Sir
John was too old a hand in those regions not to know.that, and it is my firm belief that having
made up his mind to return to England, he was lost on his home passage.

Should you consider my presence in England likely to forward the cause, pray let me
knlow, as 1 take a very deep interest in the solutionof the question. I wish to Heaven that
your next would contain the joyful intelligence that Government had at last decided in your
favour, as I feel confident that it will be the only expedition with any chance of success.

I renain, &c.
(signed) L. Platon.

- No. 9.-

Sir, Admiralty, 26 March 1852.
I HAVE receiVyd and laid before my Lords Commissioners of the Admiralty

your letter of the 23d instant, with its enclosures, respecting the further searcli
after Sir John Franklin's expedition. 1 am, &c.

(signed) W. A. B. Hanilton.
Rear-Adrmiral Sir John Ross, c. B.


